
Minutes of Planning Commission Meeting 
held Monday, April 10, 2017, at 7:00 P.M. 
in the Council Chambers, 11North3rd Street, 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Greg Sutton. 

Roll Call 
Greg Sutton (Chairperson) 
Terry DeLoach (Vice Chairperson) 
Bill Callan (absent) 
David Dahl 
Georgette Dumont 

Alternates 
Britton Sanders (absent) 
Margo Moehring 

JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH 

Also present were Heather Ireland, Senior Planner and Amber Lehman, Staff Assistant 

Approval of Minutes 

It was mo.ved by Mr. DeLoach, seconded by Ms. Dumont, and passed unanimously, to 
approve the following minutes, as presented: 

• Planning Commission meeting held on February 13, 2017 
• Planning Commission meeting held on February 27, 2017 

Correspondence 

Ms. Ireland reported that there was no correspondence received. 

Old Business 

There was no old business. 

New Business 

(A) PC #10-17-1304 pt Avenue North 

Concept Plat Approval for a proposed three-unit townhouse project located in a 
Commercial, general: C-2 zoning district, pursuant to Section 34-503 of the 
Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code. 

PC 1 70410 niins Page 1of8 



Minutes of Planning Commission 
Monday, April 10, 2017 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The subject property is located on the south side of pt Avenue North between 
Penman Road and 11th Street North. The property has existed as single-family 
residential despite being located in a commercial zoning district. The applicant 
wishes to redevelop the property with three fee-simple townhouses. The applicant 
received Conditional Use approval via PC#5-l 7 on February 27, 2017 for multiple 
family in C-2 zoning for the proposed three-unit townhouse project. The applicants 
plan shows three townhouse lots that meet the minimum RM-1 townhouse lot sizes 
and street frontages, (2,500 square foot exterior lots, and 1,500 square foot interior 
lots). 

Adjacent property uses include single-family to the north across 1st Avenue North, 
a vacant single family home to the east (pending multi-family development), 
commercial to the west, and commercial to the south, along on Beach Boulevard. 
The proposed three-unit townhouse project is consistent with the mixed-use 
character of the surrounding area, meets the RM-1 zoning district requirements, and 
represents a transitional use between the commercial uses on Beach Boulevard and 
the residential neighborhoods to the north. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. Alex Sifakis, 440 7th A venue South, stated that the lots directly 
to the east were approved for conditional use and concept plan a year ago for a 
similar proposal. 

Ms. Dumont asked how many total townhomes would be built there. She stated 
she liked the transition use but expressed concern about lot coverage as compared 
to the single-family lot coverage. She questioned about drainage. Mr. Sifakis 
stated that they would have to permit the stormwater and have a plan to address it 
as part of permitting. 

Mr. Sutton asked about lot coverage. Ms. Ireland stated that it is 65% for 
residential. Mr. Sifakis noted that it reduced the lot coverage from 85% for 
commercial. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor 
of or in opposition to the application. 

There was no one present to speak in favor of or in opposition to the proposed 
application. Mr. Sutton closed the public hearing. 

PC 170410 rnins Page 2 of8 



Minutes of Planning Commission 
Monday, April 10,2017 

Discussion: 

Mr. Dahl noted that he had talked to the Planning Director about meeting the 
technical requirements of the zoning code and the Comprehensive Plan. He stated 
that the Planning Commission makes the determination whether it meets the Plan 
policies. 

Ms. Dumont asked if the applicant would have to get approval for a duplex. Ms. 
Ireland responded that they would. 

Mr. DeLoach stated that this applicant should not be penalized while they are in 
this transitional period to assess the Plan and the Zoning Code. He added that this 
was a better use of the property than commercial that could go in there. 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. DeLoach and seconded by Ms. Moehring, to approve 
the application. 

Ms. Dumont stated that this would have more impact on the street than commercial 
because a commercial development would have to provide parking. She thought 
this didn't go with the character of the community. Mr. DeLoach stated that 
certainly a restaurant would have to meet the parking requirements, but would have 
more traffic impacts than residential. He added that commercial could have much 
more of a negative impact than residential. 

Mr. Dahl reviewed the standards for the Planning Commission's decisions and how 
this development will meet these standards. 

Mr. DeLoach noted that the applicant is meeting the parking requirements. He 
stated that as long as they meet they meet the requirements; there is no basis for 
denial. Ms. Dumont stated that sometimes the requirements do not meet the quality 
of life issue. Mr. DeLoach responded with the question of where the board draws 
the line on how many units are too many. Mr. Dahl stated that you draw the line 
by determining level of impact of what was proposed. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - DeLoach, Sutton, Moehring. 
Nays-Dahl and Dumont. 
The motion was approved 3-2. 

(B) PC #11-17-1380 Beach Boulevard 

Conditional Use Approval for a drinking establishment, located in a Commercial, 
general: C-2 zoning district, pursuant to Section 34-343(d)(l) of the Jacksonville 
Beach Land Development Code. (Coastal Indoor Golf) 

PC 170410 mins Page 3 of8 



Minutes of Planning Commission 
Monday, April 10, 2017 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The subject property is located on the south side of Beach Boulevard within the 
Beach Plaza commercial shopping center. The applicant plans to open an indoor 
golf facility within a tenant space on the west end of the shopping center facing 
Beach Boulevard (tenant space #1380). The space was previously occupied by a 
retail establishment. The applicant would like to serve beer and wine to customers, 
classifying it as a "drinking establishment" for zoning purposes. Drinking 
establishments are listed as conditional uses in C-2 zoning districts. 

A similar recreational establishment was also approved as a "drinking 
establishment" via PC#l 7-3 in 2003 for a billiards room at 1323 South 3rd Street, 
so that customers at the business could purchase beer or wine for consumption on 
premises. 

Adjacent uses include commercial to the north across Beach Boulevard, 
commercial to the east and south in the balance of the shopping center, and a City
owned cemetery to the west across Penman Road. The tenant space is more than 
500 feet away from the next closest approved drinking establishment and does not 
violate the City's drinking establishment proximity requirements pursuant to 
Section 34-393(b ). The proposed use should not negatively impact adjacent uses, 
and there is adequate parking within the shopping center. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. Brian Sherrill, 2615 Crystal Cove Court, Jacksonville, explained 
that Coastal Indoor Golf is simulated golf software that allows you to practice your 
golf on 84 simulated courses. 

Ms. Dumont asked Mr. Sherrill to further describe the operation. Mr. Sherrill 
explained how the operation worked with golfing on the simulators. He noted that 
golfing on the simulators is less expensive than real golf, noting that the cost is $40 
to $50 per person. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor 
of or in opposition to the application. 

There was no one present to speak in favor of or in opposition to the proposed 
application. 

Mr. Sutton closed the public hearing. 

PC 1 70410 mins Page 4of8 



Minutes of Planning Commission 
Monday, April 10, 2017 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Dumont and seconded by Mr. Dahl, to approve the 
application. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - DeLoach, Dumont, Sutton, Moehring, and Dahl. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

(C) PC #13-17-1224 & 1236 pt Avenue North 

Concept Plat Approval for a proposed six-unit townhouse project, located in a 
Commercial, general: C-2 zoning district, pursuant to Section 34-503 of the 
Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code. 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The applicant is proposing to develop a six-unit fee-simple multiple family 
townhouse project on two adjacent lots located on the south side of 1st A venue 
North, east of Penman Road. The applicant received conditional use approval under 
PC#27-15 to develop the property into multifamily residential per the RM-1 zoning 
standards, in a C-2 zoning district, pursuant to Section 34-339 of the Land 
Development Code. The applicant also received Concept Plat approval in 
December of2015, via PC# 32-15, however, if a Development Plan is not submitted 
within one year of Concept Plat approval, the concept plat becomes void, pursuant 
to Section 34-504 of the City Land Development Code. The applicant was advised 
by staff that they would need to reapply for Concept Plat. 

The proposed site plan provided shows six fee-simple townhouse lots that meet the 
minimum townhouse lot sizes and street frontages, for the Residential, multiple 
family: RM-1 zoning district, (2,500 square foot exterior lots, and 1,500 square foot 
interior lots). 

Adjacent uses include a beauty salon directly to the east, single-family homes to 
the north across 1st Avenue North, a single family home to the west, (see PC# 10-
17) and a car wash and an auto repair business to the south along Beach Boulevard. 
The proposed six-unit townhouse project is consistent with the mixed-use character 
of the surrounding area, meets the RM-1 zoning district requirements, and 
represents a transitional use between the commercial uses on Beach Boulevard and 
the residential neighborhood to the north. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. Curtis Hart, 8051 Tara Lane, Jacksonville, noted that the Board 
had previously approved a concept plat for this parcel. He stated that this is an ideal 

PC 170410 mins Page 5of8 



Minutes of Planning Commission 
Monday, April 10, 2017 

transitional use that can use the existing drainage system with new piping that will 
adequately address the drainage from this parcel. 

Mr. Sutton asked about the location of the drain. Mr. Hart stated that it was on his 
side of the road. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor 
of or in opposition to the application. 

There was no one present to speak in favor of or in opposition to the proposed 
application. Mr. Sutton closed the public hearing. 

Discussion: 

Ms. Dumont noted that to the west is now a triplex and not a single-family home as 
stated. 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. DeLoach and seconded by Ms. Moehring, to approve 
the application. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Sutton, Moehring, Dahl, and DeLoach. 
Nays - Dumont. 
The motion was approved 4-1. 

(D) PC #14-17- 333 and 335 5th Avenue South 

Concept Plat Approval for a proposed five-unit townhouse project, located in a 
Commercial, limited: C-1 zoning district, pursuant to Section 34-503 of the 
Jacksonville Beach Land Development Code. 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The applicant has purchased two adjacent lots on the north side of 5th A venue South 
between 3rd and 4th Streets South, and wishes to redevelop them into a fee-simple 
five-unit townhouse development pursuant to LDC Section 34-339 Residential, 
multiple family: RM-1 zoning standard. The applicant received conditional use 
approval for multi-family use at the subject properties on March 13, 2017, via PC# 
6-17. 

PC 170410 mins Page 6of8 



Minutes of Planning Commission 
Monday, April 10, 2017 

Adjacent uses include multi-family residential to the east, commercial to the north, 
commercial and residential to the south, and residential, commercial and new multi
family residential to the west. A five-unit townhouse on the combined subject lots 
is within the· character of the existing mix of multiple-family residential and 
commercial uses on surrounding properties. The subject properties are sufficient in 
size to support a five-unit townhouse project per RM-1 zoning standards. Adjacent 
property values should not be negatively impacted by the proposed multi-family 
residential development. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. Curtis Hart, 8051 Tara Lane, Jacksonville, stated that this parcel 
was approved for a conditional use two weeks ago. There was a four-unit apartment 
building to the east on half as much land. He added that there is an industrial 
warehouse to the north and multi-family to the west, noting that this was in 
character with the neighborhood. 

Mr. DeLoach asked if these were all the same layout. Mr. Hart stated that 
depending on the width, they were about the same. 

Ms. Moehring asked if they would be providing more parking for the units. Mr. 
Hart responded that the end units could provide more parking. 

Ms. Dumont noted that the apartments that covered half the space were by nature 
smaller than these five townhomes. 

Mr. Dahl reiterated that his points expressed earlier still pertained to this project. 
He noted that the neighbor he had talked to expressed concern about parking. 

Mr. DeLoach asked at what would qualify something as too much traffic if this 
street was not a failed street. Mr. Dahl noted that with concurrency being 
eliminated they went for a mobility fee. Ms. Ireland noted that the number of trips 
from this residential use would be less than commercial. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor 
of or in opposition to the application. 

Mr. Alex Sifakis, 440 7th A venue South, addressed the quality oflife issue that was 
brought up before. He noted that quality oflife issues also affect the current owner 
of the property. He noted that these properties are the savings of the land owner 
and project denial will affect their bottom line. 

PC 170410 mins Page 7 of8 



Minutes of Planning Commission 
Monday, April 10,2017 

Discussion: 

Ms. Dumont stated that until the City can get their ordinances in line to address 
livability issues, she will continue to have concerns. She didn't think these issues 
should come at the expense of the neighbors. 

Mr. DeLoach stated that when you move to an area you should be aware of the 
zoning where you move to. He added that the applicant could not build these types 
of projects in other areas of the City. He stated that the residents should be aware 
of the zoning and the potential development that could occur as a result of that 
zorung. 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. DeLoach and seconded by Ms. Moehring, to approve 
application. 

Roll call vote: Ayes -Sutton, Moehring, Dahl, and DeLoach. 
Nays - Dumont. 
The motion was approved 4-1. 

Planning & Development Director's Report 

Ms. Ireland noted that the next meeting would be April 24, 2017 with two cases to review. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business coming before the Commission, Mr. Sutton adjourned the 
meeting at 7:54 P.M. 

Submitted by: Amber Maria Lehman 
Staff Assistant 

PC 170410 mins Page 8of8 


